


 

 

 
 
 
 
 
February 27, 2012           
 
         
Stephen Hoffman 
Senior Environmental Scientist 
Office of Resource Conservation and Recovery 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW (5304P) 
Washington, D.C. 20460 
 
RE: NV Energy Response to Recommendations in EPA Letter Dated January 12, 2012  
 
Dear Mr. Hoffman: 
 
NV Energy (NVE) offers the following response to the recommendations noted in your 
January 12, 2012 letter.  Please note that some of the recommendations you have noted 
have already been addressed and NVE has provided your office with the respective 
information. 
 
12.1 Corrective Measures and Analyses for the Structures 
 
EPA Recommendation: 
 
“We concur with NVE’s plan to conduct a study of the liquefaction potential of the 
impoundments to include field investigations, analysis, and assessment of the liquefaction 
potential relative to stability of the impoundments. If the results indicate there is a potential for 
liquefaction to affect the stability of an embankment, then the pseudo-static stability analysis 
performed by NVE would no longer be applicable and a post-liquefaction stability analysis 
would be necessary.” 
 
“Additional improvements to address stability of the impoundments may be necessary 
depending on the findings of the liquefaction potential evaluation.” 
 
NV Energy Response: 
 
Included with our letter dated December 13, 2011, NVE provided the EPA with a copy of a 
Final Liquefaction Analysis of our Coal Combustion Waste Impoundments at the Reid 
Gardner Generating Station. 
 
Based on a January 26, 2012 teleconference with EPA and a subsequent letter from EPA 
dated January 31, 2012, on February 10, 2012, NVE provided additional information clarifying 
three issues raised by EPA following your review and evaluation of the December 2011 
Liquefaction Analysis.  The three issues raised by EPA were as follows: 
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1. Structural Stability of Pond F; 
2. Clarification of the results of static and seismic loading assuming liquefaction at 

operating ponds, and  
3. Assumed Strength Characteristics of the pond liner 

 
As of this writing, the liquid level in Pond F remains nearly empty of liquids.  Additionally, 
physical isolation and administrative measures are in place to prevent flow to Pond F.  Pond 
F is effectively out of service. 
 
NVE is in the process of developing a plan to further evaluate the embankments structural 
integrity which will include validation of the Liquefaction Analysis results from December 
2011.  The findings from this evaluation will determine the final decision for future use, if any, 
of Pond F.  We anticipate that the evaluation process will be complete by September 14, 
2012.  At that time NVE would proceed to implement any required structural improvements of 
the Pond F embankments or permanently close the pond and follow with later removal of the 
structure. 
 
Included in “Appendix A” of this response are copies of the NVE December 13, 2011 cover 
letter which accompanied the Liquefaction Analysis report and our February 10, 2012 
response to EPA letter dated January 31, 2012. 
 
EPA Recommendation: 
 
“Clear vegetation from the Pond F dike slopes above the Muddy River. Monitor the bank of 
the Muddy River for erosion to assess the potential for encroachment of the river on the toe 
of the Pond F dike at the northeast extent of Pond F.” 
 
NV Energy Response: 
 
As a result of discussions with the EPA and Nevada Division of Environmental Protection 
(NDEP) representatives during their joint inspection at the Reid Gardner Generating Station 
on February 15, 2011, the vegetation along the base of the northwest corner of Pond F was 
cleared on May 3, 2011.  By clearing this vegetation, it now allows NVE staff to observe the 
condition of the embankment closest to the Muddy River.  
 
Provided in “Appendix B” of this response, NVE is providing before and after pictures of the 
observed vegetation during the site visit on February 15, 2011 and the current condition of 
the same areas as of February 22, 2012.  The current picture were taken from approximately 
the same locations and angles as those on February 15, 2011. 
 
NVE proposes “No Further Action” to this matter.  
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EPA Recommendation: 
 
“Protect the integrity of the Pond F dike slurry wall by not removing the adjacent Pond G 
dikes until Pond F is out of service.” 
 
NV Energy Response: 
 
We concur with this recommendation.  Please note our comment above, noting that F Pond is 
currently in inactive status pending further evaluation of the dike structural integrity. 
 
EPA Recommendation: 
 
“Monitor the 16-inch gravity pipe adjacent to the toe of Pond F dike for visual signs of erosion 
or seepage because of its critical location adjacent to the toe of the embankments.” 
 
NV Energy Response: 
 
NVE has added this 16-inch irrigation pipe and the diversion structure to its routine 
observation and inspection list.  Specifically, NVE will be looking for visual signs of erosion or 
seepage causing any threat to the toe of the embankments.    
 
EPA Recommendation: 
 
“Perform repairs to the HDPE lining to seal the interstitial liner drainage system.” 
 
NV Energy Response: 
 
Repairs were completed and documented with a letter to the Nevada Department of 
Environmental Protection dated September 15, 2011. 
 
Additionally, NVE conducted additional internal inspections of all “outlet boots” for each 
interstitial leak detection systems at the Reid Gardner Generating Station and made 
additional repairs where necessary. 
 
Attached in “Appendix C” is correspondence between NDEP and NVE.  Included are before 
and after photos of all repairs as well as a visual picture generated from a satellite image of 
the Station with notations of where corresponding photos were taken.  Included is a final 
letter from the NDEP dated October 12, 2011 accepting NVE actions and closing out their 
compliance inspection findings. 
 
NVE considers this matter closed and will take no further action.  
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12.2 Corrective Measures Required for Instrumentation and Monitoring Procedures 
 
EPA Recommendation: 
 
“We recommend a more thorough instrumentation and monitoring program is developed and 
implemented. NVE has initiated surveys of concrete pads on the dikes and this may provide 
useful information on movement of the dike. If surveys of the concrete pads are found to be 
not representative of embankment movement, then we recommend that settlement 
monuments be installed. We recommend that uniform dike crest elevations be established in 
order to help with visual identification of settlement and to avoid the potential for concentrated 
flow if impoundments should overtop. We recommend a standardized monitoring program be 
established that includes all monitoring instrumentation and documents the methods used for 
data collection.” 
 
NV Energy Response: 
 
NVE will engage the services of an engineering firm and evaluate a series of properly located 
bench marks for each pond embankment.  These bench marks will be designed and located 
to provide consistent and accurate yearly survey data points.  A policy and procedure for the 
required monitoring and comparison of the data will be developed and issued by August 31, 
2012.  Contracts will be issued and the survey bench marks installed and the baseline survey 
completed by November 16, 2012. 
 
12.3 Corrective Measures Required for Maintenance and Surveillance Procedures 
 
EPA Recommendation: 
 
“We recommend NV Energy develop and document formal inspections of the CCW 
impoundments, at a minimum to be performed annually by plant staff. We recommend a brief 
daily check inspection be conducted by RGGS personnel and that a written record is 
maintained for the monthly inspections being conducted by NV Energy personnel. Also, 
continue efforts to repair minor erosion, oversteepened banks, and damage to the HDPE liner 
system as necessary.” 
 
NV Energy Response: 
 
We concur with the recommendation and will perform yearly inspections that will be 
documented.   
 
Pond daily monitoring will include a checklist for visual abnormalities of pond structures, 
dikes, liners, erosion, and embankments. 
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Copies of the NVE December 13, 2011 cover letter which accompanied the Liquefaction 
Analysis report and our February 10, 2012 response to EPA letter dated January 31, 2012. 













 

 

 
 

“Appendix B” 
 
 
 
Before and after pictures of the observed vegetation during the site visit on February 15, 
2011 and the current condition of the same areas as of February 22, 2012. 
  





Reid Gardner Generating Station Looking Southeast.  North dike of 
Pond F 

Pond F 

Removed Vegetation 

February 22, 2012 
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Correspondence between NDEP and NVE 







Pond 4A 

Pond 4B-1 

Pond 4B-2 

Pond 4B-3 

Pond 4C-1 

Pond 4C-2 

Pond F 

Pond G 

Pond E1 

Pond E2 

Pond D 



Reid Gardner – Pond E1 
Photo Location #1 

Liner needs repair to prevent 
water from entering 
interstitial leak detection 
section 

After Before 



Reid Gardner – Pond E1 
Photo Location #2 

Liner needs to be tightly 
secured to stand pipe to 

prevent water from entering  
interstitial leak detection 

system 

Before After 



Reid Gardner – Pond 4B-1 
Photo Location #3 

Liner piece needs to be raised and 
tightly secured to stand pipe to 
prevent water from entering  
interstitial leak detection system 

Before After 



Reid Gardner – Pond 4B-2 
Photo Location #4 

Need to install a “CAP” at 
end of pipe to prevent 
water from entering 
interstitial leak detection 
system 

Before After 



Reid Gardner – Pond 4B-1 
Photo Location #5 

 
Need to install a “CAP” at end of 

pipe to prevent water from 
entering interstitial leak detection 

system 

 

Before After 



Reid Gardner – Pond 4B-1  
Photo Location #6 

 
Need to install a “CAP” at end 
of pipe to prevent water from 

entering interstitial leak 
detection system 

 Before After 



Reid Gardner – Pond 4B-3  
Photo #7 

Need to install a clamp to secure 
lining to piping to prevent water 

from entering interstitial leak 
detection system 

 
Need to install a “CAP” at end of 

pipe to prevent water from 
entering interstitial leak detection 

system 
 Before After 



Reid Gardner – Pond 4B-3  
Photo Location #8 

Need to install a clamp to 
secure lining to piping to 

prevent water from entering 
interstitial leak detection 

system 

Need to install a clamp to 
secure lining to piping to 

prevent water from entering 
interstitial leak detection 

system 

Before After 



Reid Gardner – Pond 4B-3  
Photo Location #9 

 
Need to install a “CAP” at end of 

pipe to prevent water from 
entering interstitial leak detection 

system 
 

 
Need to install a clamp to 
secure lining to piping to 

prevent water from entering 
interstitial leak detection 

system 
 

Before After 



Reid Gardner – Pond 4C-3  
Photo Location #10 and #11 

 
No Recommended Repairs 

 

No Recommended Repairs 

Photo #10 
Before 

Photo #11 
Before 



Reid Gardner – Pond 4C-2 
Photo Location #12 

 
Need to install a “CAP” at end of 

pipe to prevent water from 
entering interstitial leak 

detection system 
 

 
Liner needs repair to 
prevent water from 

entering interstitial leak 
detection section 

 

Before After 



Reid Gardner – Pond 4C-1  
Photo Location #13 

 
Need to install a “CAP” at end 
of pipe to prevent water from 

entering interstitial leak 
detection system 

 

Before After 






